
 

  
 

General Licensing 
Committee 

Agenda 

 
 

 

Date: 
 
Venue: 

Tuesday 14 March 2023 at 10.00 am 
 
Jim Cooke Conference Suite, Stockton Central Library, The Square, Stockton-
on-Tees, TS18 1TU 

 
 
Cllr Paul Kirton (Chair) 
Cllr Eileen Johnson (Vice-Chair) 
 
Cllr Jacky Bright Cllr Robert Cook 
Cllr Evaline Cunningham Cllr Ken Dixon 
Cllr Tina Large Cllr Mick Moore 
Cllr Maurice Perry Cllr Lee Spence 
Cllr Marilyn Surtees Cllr Hilary Vickers 
Cllr Julia Whitehill Cllr Bill Woodhead MBE 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1   Evacuation Procedure 

 
(Pages 7 - 8) 

 
2   Apologies for Absence 

 
 
 

3   Declarations of Interest 
 

 
 

4   Minutes 
 

 

 To approve the minutes of the last meeting held on 31 
January 2023 
 

(Pages 9 - 16) 
 

5   Exclusion of the Public 
 

 
 

6   Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 
001223 
 

(Pages 17 - 44) 
 

7   Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Driver Application – 
154855 
 

(Pages 45 - 68) 
 

 

Page 1



  
 

General Licensing 
Committee 

Agenda 

 
 

Members of the Public - Rights to Attend Meeting 
 
With the exception of any item identified above as containing exempt or confidential information under the 
Local Government Act 1972 Section 100A(4), members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting 
and/or have access to the agenda papers. 
 
Persons wishing to obtain any further information on this meeting, including the opportunities available   for 
any member of the public to speak at the meeting; or for details of access to the meeting for 
disabled people, please 
 
Contact:      Sarah Whaley on email sarah.whaley@stockton.gov.uk 

Page 2



  

KEY - Declarable interests are:- 
 
●  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI’s) 
●  Other Registerable Interests (ORI’s) 
●  Non Registerable Interests (NRI’s) 

 
Members – Declaration of Interest Guidance 

 

 

Page 3



  

 

 

Table 1 - Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Subject Description 

Employment,  
office, trade,  
profession or  
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain 

Sponsorship 

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) 
made to the councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by 
him/her in carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election 
expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts 

Any contract made between the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil partners (or a 
firm in which such person is a partner, or an incorporated body of which such person 
is a director* or  
 
a body that such person has a beneficial interest in the securities of*) and the council 
—  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; 
and  
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and 
property 

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the council.  
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does 
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the 
councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or jointly with another) 
a right to occupy or to receive income. 

Licences 
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer. 

Corporate 
tenancies 

Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s knowledge)—  
(a) the landlord is the council; and  
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners is a 
partner of or a director* of or has a beneficial interest in the securities* of. 

Securities 

Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body where—     
(a) that body (to the councillor’s   knowledge) has a place of business or   land in the 
area of the council; and     
(b) either—     
(i) the total nominal value of the   securities* exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or     
(ii)      if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or civil 
partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil 
partners have a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class. 

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society. 
 
* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment 
scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any 
description, other than money deposited with a building society.

Page 4



  

 

 

Table 2 – Other Registerable Interest 

You must register as an Other Registrable Interest: 
 
a) any unpaid directorships 
 
b) any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or management and to which 
you are nominated or appointed by your authority  
 
c) any body  
 
(i) exercising functions of a public nature  
 
(ii) directed to charitable purposes or  
 
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political 
party or trade union) of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Jim Cooke Conference Suite, Stockton Central Library 
Evacuation Procedure & Housekeeping 
 
If the fire or bomb alarm should sound please exit by the nearest emergency exit. 
The Fire alarm is a continuous ring and the Bomb alarm is the same as the fire 
alarm however it is an intermittent ring.  
 
If the Fire Alarm rings exit through the nearest available emergency exit and form 
up in Municipal Buildings Car Park.   
 
The assembly point for everyone if the Bomb alarm is sounded is the car park at 
the rear of Splash on Church Road.  
 
The emergency exits are located via the doors between the 2 projector screens. 
The key coded emergency exit door will automatically disengage when the alarm 
sounds. 
 
The Toilets are located on the Ground floor corridor of Municipal Buildings next to 
the emergency exit. Both the ladies and gents toilets are located on the right 
hand side. 
 
Microphones 
 
During the meeting, members of the Committee, and officers in attendance, will 
have access to a microphone. Please use the microphones, when directed to 
speak by the Chair, to ensure you are heard by the Committee. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

General Licensing Committee 
 
A meeting of General Licensing Committee was held on Tuesday, 31st January, 
2023. 
 
Present:   Cllr Paul Kirton(Chairman), Cllr Eileen Johnson(Vice-Chair), Cllr Robert Cook, Cllr Evaline 
Cunningham, Cllr Ken Dixon, Cllr Mick Moore, Cllr Maurice Perry, Cllr Marilyn Surtees, Cllr Bill Woodhead MBE 
 
Officers:  Natalie Hodgson, Rebecca Jackson, Sarah Whaley (D o CS), Polly Edwards, Leanne Maloney-Kelly, 
Amy Stephenson, Kirsty Wannop (D o AH),   
 
Also in attendance:   Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 001379, Combined Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 and his representative Mr P Spence 
 
Apologies:   Cllr Tina Large, Cllr Lee Spence, Cllr Hilary Vickers 
 
 
GLC 
31/22 
 

Evacuation Procedure 
 
The Evacuation Procedure was noted. 
 

GLC 
32/22 
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
For transparency purposes Councillor Evaline Cunningham informed the 
Committee that with regard to the item relating to Combined Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Driver - 114288, who had contacted his local MP Alex 
Cunningham with regards to the item. Cllr Evaline Cunningham is Alex 
Cunningham MP’s wife, therefore she felt it was best to leave the room and not 
take part in the discussion of that item. 
 

GLC 
33/22 
 

Draft Minutes from the General Licensing Committee meeting which was 
held on the 8th November and 12th  
December 2022 
 
Consideration was given to the draft General Licensing Committee minutes 
which were held on the 8th November and 12th December 2022 for approval 
and signature. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved and signed as correct record by the 
Chair. 
 

GLC 
34/22 
 

Exclusion of the Public 
 
RESOLVED that under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

GLC 
35/22 
 

Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 000928 
 
The Committee was advised of new information relevant to the item that would 
need further consideration. 
 
 
RESOLVED that this item be deferred. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

 
GLC 
36/22 
 

Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 001379 
 
Members were asked to consider and determine the continued fitness of a 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver who was arrested and 
currently suspended from driving licensed vehicles. 
 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 001379 attended the 
meeting and was given the opportunity to make representation. 
 
Committee papers and reports had been provided to all relevant parties prior to 
the meeting.   
 
The report detailed the following: 
 
- A copy of a final suspension letter to Combined Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Driver – 001379. 
 
- A redacted summary from Cleveland Police. 
 
- A copy of a summary transcript between Combined Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Driver – 001379 and Licensing Officers. 
 
- A redacted copy of Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 
001379’s Bail Period Form. 
 
- A copy of Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 001379’s 
Release without Police Bail form. 
 
- A copy of various documents supplied by Combined Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Driver – 001379. 
 
The Chair introduced everyone present and explained the procedure to be 
followed during the hearing. 
 
Members noted that they were to consider and determine the continued fitness 
of Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 001379 to remain a 
licensed hackney carriage and private hire driver with this Authority after 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 001379 was arrested in 
August 2021 for the offences of, ‘Rape of a female aged 16 years or over’, 
‘Kidnapping’, ‘False Imprisonment’, ‘Possessing a controlled drug with intent to 
supply – Class A - Other’. 
 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 001379 was bailed and 
subsequently the Police took No Further Action in the matter. 
 
The Committee had regard to the report and appendices and all oral 
submissions at the Hearing.  
 
Members considered the details of the report carefully and after some 
deliberation determined that they considered Combined Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Driver – 001379 to be a fit and proper person and resolved to lift 
the suspension of his licence and have Combined Hackney Carriage and 

Page 10



 

Private Hire Driver – 001379’s licence reinstated. 
 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 001379 was reminded to 
familiarise himself with the condition imposed on him as part of the licence and 
ensure that Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 001379 
report any future incidents directly to Stockton on Tees Brough Councils 
Licensing Department. and always confirm to the Police, if arrested again, that 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 001379 was a taxi driver.  
 
RESOLVED that that Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 
001379 have his Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers Licence 
reinstated for the reasons as detailed above.   
 

GLC 
37/22 
 

Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 
 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 
 
Members were asked to consider and determine the continued fitness of 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver 114288 due to his attitude 
and behaviour with a member of the public, complaint history and refusal to 
heed officers’ warnings and advice which had raised questions regarding his 
continued safety and suitability.  
 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 and his 
representative Mr Spence attended the meeting and given the opportunity to 
make representation. 
 
Committee papers and reports had been provided to all relevant parties prior to 
the meeting.   
 
The report detailed the following: 
 
- A copy of a redacted complaint against Combined Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Driver – 114288. 
 
- A copy of a tape-recorded interview with Licensing Officers and Combined 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288. 
 
- A copy of an image provided by Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Driver – 114288 showing an image of his steering wheel with double sided tape 
on, which he used to stick his mobile phone to when recording customers. 
 
- Copies of various warning letters to Combined Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Driver – 114288. 
 
- A copy of an enquiry received from Alex Cunningham MP’s office following 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 contacting him in 
relation to investigations undertaken by the licensing team.   
 
- A copy of a response to Alex Cunningham MP.  
 
- A copy of policy requirements relating to the installation of CCTV in licensed 
vehicles. 

Page 11



 

 
The Chair introduced everyone present and explained the procedure to be 
followed during the hearing. 
 
Members noted that they were to consider and determine the continued fitness 
of Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 for the 
reasons as detailed within the Officers main report.  
 
The Committee heard that the Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Driver – 114288 had been a licenced driver with this Authority since 2009.  
 
The Committee heard that a complaint had been received from a passenger on 
26 November 2022, regarding Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Driver – 114288, requesting payment up front. The passenger believed this was 
more than double the regular fare. The Committee heard that the complainant 
felt that the driver’s approach was an attempt to exploit an intoxicated 
passenger. 
 
The Committee also heard that Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Driver – 114288 had shown officers a video of the passenger, that he had 
recorded on his mobile telephone. Combined Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Driver – 114288 believed his mobile telephone was stuck to the steering 
wheel of his vehicle at the time of the recording. The Committee noted that 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 admitted 
recording passengers with his mobile telephone in this way. 
 
The Committee heard that the driver’s history and background was relevant to 
them in determining the driver’s fitness:- 
 
• In 2009, Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 
received a written warning regarding his conduct in relation to an endorsement 
of six penalty points on his licence that he had declared on his application form 
for driving without insurance. 
 
• In 2012, Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 
received a written warning regarding an endorsement on his licence for using a 
mobile telephone whilst driving. 
 
 
• In 2013, Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 
received a written warning regarding his future conduct and driving standards 
after an officer observed his poor driving whilst using a hand-held mobile 
telephone. 
 
• In 2015, an allegation that an unconscious drunk female was sexually 
assaulted in Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288’s 
taxi. No further action was taken by Cleveland Police and there was insufficient 
evidence for the Licensing Authority to take any action. 
 
 
• In 2017, Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 
received written warnings regarding his attitude, swearing and bad driving, and 
for refusing a short fare four months later. 

Page 12



 

 
• In 2020, Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 
received a written warning regarding two separate incidents. The first was 
following a complaint regarding his behaviour towards a female with a child. The 
second was in relation to an allegation that the driver had assaulted a school 
pupil. 
 
• In 2021, Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 
alleged that other drivers were bullying him, however there was insufficient 
evidence to pursue this matter. 
 
• In May 2022, Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 
driver was issued with a written warning in relation to his conduct for; 
 
-pushing in the rank at Yarm High Street. 
-refusing short fare on Yarm High Street in May 2022. 
-abusive language towards another licensed driver at Stockton’s taxi rank. 
 
• In November 2022, the driver was issued with a written warning in relation to 
his conduct for; 
 
-refusing a short fare from Yarm High Street in November 2022. 
-attempting to overcharge from rank outside Ku Bar in Stockton. 
 
The Committee heard that officers had tried to educate and assist Combined 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288, however despite this he 
had not heeded the warnings given to him. The Committee noted that 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 had been 
warned repeatedly that his behaviour raised concerns in relation to his fitness to 
hold a licence. 
 
Mr Spence presented the case on behalf of Combined Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Driver – 114288. 
 
Mr Spence explained to the Committee that Combined Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Driver – 114288 denied overcharging the complainant passenger 
from November 2022 and stated that the fare would have been higher than the 
£10.00 that the driver accepted. 
 
Mr Spence highlighted that Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver 
– 114288’s job could be difficult, but that Combined Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Driver – 114288 tried to keep his cool and yet be firm. Mr Spence 
stated that the driver had experienced aggressive passengers and had been in 
fear of passengers in the past. 
 
Mr Spence further explained to the Committee that Combined Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 denied using his mobile telephone 
illegally, as it was attached to his steering wheel when in use.  
 
Mr Spence stated that Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 
114288 was willing to install CCTV within his vehicle in order to protect 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 and his 
passengers. 

Page 13



 

 
Members of the Committee were given an opportunity to ask questions of 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288. 
 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 was questioned 
in relation to his mobile telephone being affixed to the steering wheel of his 
vehicle.  
 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 confirmed that 
he recorded passengers when he felt threatened and stated that he could not 
trust any of them.  
 
Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 told the 
Committee that he undercharged if anything, and that he was an honest man. 
 
Members had regard to the Committee papers, which had been circulated prior 
to the hearing and presented to them, in addition to the oral submissions made 
on Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288’s behalf and 
by Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 himself in 
response to the Committee’s questions. 
 
Having carefully considered the written documentation before them and in 
reaching their decision, Members had regard to the provisions of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. The Committee also had 
regard to the Council’s Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Licensing Policy 
2021 – 2026. 
 
Under section 61 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, the 
Committee may revoke a driver’s licence for any reasonable cause. When 
determining this matter, the Committee considered this case on its merits. 
 
The Committee understood that their overriding consideration was the safety of 
the public. The Committee considered that holding a licence was a privilege not 
a right, and those who hold a licence are expected to conduct themselves in a 
manner that does not bring their profession or the Council into disrepute. 
 
The Committee noted Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 
114288 history and background as set out within the Committee papers. The 
Committee were deeply concerned by the documented pattern of complaints 
regarding Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288’s 
conduct and inability to control his emotions spanning over twelve years, from 
2009 to 2022. The Committee noted that Combined Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Driver – 114288 had received eight written warnings in that time, 
and despite these, his concerning behaviour had continued and indeed 
appeared to be escalating in 2022. 
 
The Committee further noted that no character references were provided by 
anyone for whom Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 
114288 had worked for, nor from any passengers in support of his assertion that 
he was a fit and proper person. 
 
The Committee noted that the complaint from November 2022 was the third 
time that Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 had 

Page 14



 

come to the attention of the Licensing Authority for incidents of using a mobile 
telephone whilst driving. The Committee report documented Combined Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288’s notification to the Licensing 
Authority of a conviction in February 2012 for using a mobile telephone whilst 
driving (offence code CU80). Despite the written warning that Combined 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288 had received on that 
occasion, in May 2013 Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 
114288 was again observed driving poorly and using a mobile telephone whilst 
driving, which again resulted in a further written warning. 
 
The Committee found that despite Combined Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Driver – 114288’s claim that he affixed his mobile telephone to the steering 
wheel of his vehicle using a Velcro fastening rather than holding it whilst driving, 
the use of a mobile telephone in this way whilst driving was inappropriate and 
potentially dangerous as this was likely to distract the driver. 
 
Furthermore, the Committee felt that Combined Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Driver – 114288’s recording of passengers was inappropriate and was not 
in accordance with the written advice that he had been sent on 26th May 2022 
by a Licensing Officer. 
 
Members of the Committee were not satisfied that they would allow people for 
whom they care to enter a vehicle with the driver alone due to their doubts 
surrounding Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 114288’s  
attitude and behaviour. 
 
Ultimately, the Committee did not believe that Combined Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Driver – 114288 was a fit and proper person to hold a combined 
hackney carriage and private hire vehicle drivers licence owing to his 
background, specifically the pattern of concerns around his conduct spanning 
over twelve years. The Committee were unanimously satisfied that the driver’s 
licence should therefore be revoked. 
 
RESOLVED that that Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 
114288's,  Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers Licence be 
revoked for the reasons as detailed above.   
 

GLC 
38/22 
 

Delegated Decisions and Court Appeals Update 
 
The Committee noted an update with regards to Officer Delegated Decisions 
which officers had made in utilising powers delegated to them by this 
Committee, along with an update on a recent court appeal hearing full details of 
which were detailed within the Officers report. 
 
A full list of delegated decisions and action taken from April 2022 – Oct 2022 
could be found appended to the Officers main report.  
 
AGREED that the report be noted. 
 

 
 

  

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 17

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 41

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 61

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Evacuation Procedure
	4 Minutes
	6 Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver – 001223
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	7 Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Driver Application – 154855
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


